
 

THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
 

TOWN OF NORTHBRIDGE 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

NORTHBRIDGE TOWN HALL 
7 MAIN STREET - WHITINSVILLE, MA  01588 

April 10, 2023 at 7:00 PM  
  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. 1) January 9, 2023   2) January 23, 2023 3) February 13, 2023 
4) February 27, 2023 
 

II. PUBLIC HEARING:  B. 7:05 PM - Dog Hearing / Present: Samantha Egan (Complainant) vs. 
Heather Holt (Dog Owner) 

 
III. APPOINTMENTS/ C. By the Town Manager (Vote to Affirm): 1) Thomas Parente, DPW 

Secretary/Present: Jamie Luchini, DPW Director; 2) Annual Reappointment (Vote to reappoint): 
Daniel Chauvin, Animal Control Officer  
 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 
 
IV. DECISIONS: 

D. Bylaw Review Committee: Request to extend the term of the Committee for an additional 6 
months/Present: Russell Collins or Richard Sasseville  
 
E. Northbridge Firefighters (IAFF Local 3338)/1) Request to hang a banner across Church Street 
from Sunday, May 7, 2023 to May 14, 2023 to advertise the Spaghetti Supper to be held on Saturday 
May 13, 2023 from 4 PM to 8 PM 2) Application for a one-day weekday Entertainment License for 
the Fireworks event to be held from 6 PM to 10 PM on Saturday, July 15, 2023 at Lasell Field 
(Middle School) /Present:  Dep. Chief Anthony Genga and Scott McKeown, Event Organizers 
 
F. Soorp Asdvadzadzin Armenian Apostolic Church / Request to hang a banner across Church Street 
from Sunday, August 6, 2023 until Sunday, August 20, 2023 to advertise the annual Church Picnic to 
be held Sunday, August 20, 2023 from 12 Noon to 5 PM. 
 
G. Pine Grove Cemetery/Vote to approve the sale of lots to: 1) Russell H. and Geraldine Vanderbaan 
[Lot No. 62, Fir Ave., (South)] 2) Gerald and Katherine Gonynor [Lot No. 61, Fir Ave., (South)] 

    
 VI. DISCUSSIONS 

    
VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS  

     
IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA  
 
X. CORRESPONDENCE  
 
XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Town Clerk:  2 Hard copies □ 
Web: Post time-stamped copy □ 



 

1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

 

January 9, 2023 

 

A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Collins at 7:00 PM, Northbridge Town 

Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Board Members Present: Ampagoomian, Begin, Collins, Melia and 

Paulhus. Also present: Town Manager Gaudette.   

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 1) September 12, 2022. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to 

approve the September 12, 2022 meeting minutes as presented with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

2) September 26, 2022. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the September 26, 2022 

meeting minutes as presented with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Unanimous. 3) October 3, 2022. A 

motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the October 3, 2022 meeting minutes as presented 

with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

Chairman Collins announced that it was not yet 7:05 PM so the Board would be moving out of order.  

 

APPOINTMENTS/By the Board of Selectmen [Vote to appoint]: C.1) Jean-Paul Corriveau, Cable 

Advisory Committee [Present:  Harry Berkowitz, CAC Chair]. Mr. Berkowitx explained that Mr. Corriveau 

has stepped forward to become a member of the Cable Advisory Board. He expressed that Mr. Corriveau has 

good experience and knowledge of how the system works. Mr. Corriveau stated that he now owns his own 

consulting company, which he runs out of his house and is semi-retired. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. 

Ampagoomian to appoint Mr. Jean-Paul Corriveau to the Cable Advisory Committee. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 

By the Town Manager [Vote to Affirm] C.2) Melissa LaBounty, Accounting Clerk. Town Accountant Neil 

Vaidya explained that they were looking for a third staff member to assist with some of the functions. Mr. Vaidya 

stated that she is more than qualified for the position and he looks forward to her coming aboard. Ms. LaBounty 

stated that she has lived in Northbridge for about four years now and she is looking forward to this opportunity. 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to affirm the Town Manager’s appointment as the Accounting 

Clerk. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING (7:05 PM): B. Early voting by mail (Votes Act) / Present: Linda Zywien, Town Clerk. 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Begin to open the public hearing. Vote yes/Unanimous. Mrs. 

Zywien explained that there have been some changes to the voting laws, one of which is the vote by mail option. 

This was used very successfully for Fall Elections. The law requires we use vote by mail for local elections 

unless the Board of Selectmen choose to opt out. Vote by mail is a convenience and is promoted to increase the 

volume of voters but looking at the statistics it doesn’t actually do that. Selectman Melia asked what she 

recommended. Mrs. Zywien felt that for a local election it is not worth the extra expense and time involved 

where it is a lower turn out compared to a State Election. There are no changes to the Absentee Voting laws and 

that will not change. Selectman Melia asked if the Selectmen would need to vote every year to opt out of early 

voting. Mrs. Zywien stated that was correct. Selectman Collins ask what the cost is for early voting. Mrs. Zywien 

explained that it would depend on how many applications, the law requires them to mail applications to new 

residents, and anyone that moves within the town. She explained it is a long process for mail in voting, once the 

application is sent the ballot is then sent, which cost about $1.00 and the state pays the return postage. A lot of 

the ballots that go out do not come back in, and early voting also requires more workers to go through the mail 

in ballots on election day.  No residents were present for comment. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Paulhus 

to close the public hearing. Vote yes/Unanimous. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to eliminate 

the early vote by mail option for 2023 local elections. Vote yes/Unanimous. Mrs. Zywien notified the Board that 

in person early voting is not required by law, unless at least two registrars recommend it to the Board, then the 

Board would vote on it. This is part of the new law. Lastly, Mrs. Zywien made a request for a raise for the 

election workers who currently receive $100 for the full election day, which is 16 hours. $125 for the wardens 

A.1.



Board of Selectmen 

  January 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

2 

and clerks in change of each precinct. She pointed out that it is a long day and hard work that requires attention 

to detail. Mrs. Zywien requested each worker receive $25 more per day, so the checkers would make $125, the 

wardens would make $175 per day. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve the request for an 

increase as presented for the election workers. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 

CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 

 

Annual Town Election [May 16, 2023] / Vote to give notice to the Town Clerk to place vacancies from 

elected boards on the Town Election Warrant. Mrs. Zywien noted that there are four seats, three of which 

have been filled by appointees but will need to be filled by election and one is empty. The Board does need to 

vote to place those seats on the ballot. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to give notice to the 

Town Clerk to place the vacancies from elected boards on the Town Election Warrant. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 

Whitinsville Golf Club, 179 Fletcher Street, Whitinsville, MA/ Application for a Change of Officers 

Present: Kimberly Martin, Manager. Ms. Martin reported that the Whitinsville Golf Club had a change of 

Officers, which they elected a new Vice President and a former member moved up to President. With these 

changes the ABCC requires a Change of Officers application be completed, voted on and sent to the ABCC for 

further approval. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve the application for a Change of 

Officers for the Whitinsville Golf Club, 179 Fletcher Street, Whitinsville. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

Blackstone Valley Chamber of Commerce/Application for a weekday Entertainment License for their 

Open House scheduled for Wednesday, January 25, 2023, from 4:30 PM – 6:30 PM at 670 Linwood Ave., 

Suite 5, Whitinsville, MA 01588/Present: Jeannie Hebert, President. Ms. Hebert stated that they have 

decided to host entertainment during the open house, which will be acoustic music and singing. While this is an 

open house it is also a celebration of the partnerships between the Chamber, the Ed Foundation and the HUB. 

They are pleased to say that they will have some High School students there showing their training. A motion/Mr. 

Melia, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve the request for a weekday Entertainment License for their Open House 

scheduled for Wednesday, January 25, 2023, from 4:30 PM – 6:30 PM at 670 Linwood Ave., Suite 5, 

Whitinsville, MA 01588. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

   

Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [October 19, 2022 ]/Vote to accept recommendations. A motion/Mr. 

Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Begin to accept the recommendations of the October 19, 2022 Safety Committee 

minutes. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 

Pine Grove Cemetery/Vote to approve the sale of Lot 506A, one grave, Yew Ave. (South) to Suzzane Lunt 

and Virginia Lunt. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve the sale of lot 506A, one 

grave, Yew Ave. (South) to Suzzane Lunt and Virgina Lunt. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 

Northbridge Retirement Board / Vote to adopt a Local COLA Option up to 5% Present:  Neil Vaidya, 

Town Acct./Ex-Officio and Scott McGrath, Retirement Board Admin. Prior to the discussion and vote on 
this topic, Selectman Thomas Melia, also a town retiree, announced he would not be taking part in this matter, 

recused himself, and left the meeting room. Neil Vaidya, Town Accountant and Ex-Officio Member of the 

Northbridge Retirement Board began and provided some information about the Local COLA Option. He directed 

the Board to PERAC Memo #29 in the agenda packet.  He mentioned that on November 16, 2022, the Governor 

signed legislation [Chapter 269 of the Acts of 2022] into law, which allows Retirement Boards to adopt a Cost 

of Living Adjustment [COLA] for Fiscal Year 2023 of up to 5% on the COLA base. As a matter of information, 

Mr. Vaidya informed the Board that the COLA base prior to 2011 was $12,000.  He then reminded the Selectmen 

that an opportunity to raise the COLA base came in 2011, when town meeting voted to increase the COLA base 

to $14,000. Continuing, he advised that the Northbridge Retirement Board members voted to increase the Local 

COLA Option for FY’23 to 5% at their December 21, 2022 meeting, however, he noted that it also requires 

approval by the Board of Selectmen, which, if approved, the increase would be retroactive to July 1, 2022. He 

added that in past years the Retirement Board granted a 3% COLA to retirees as that was the maximum allowed 

and was pretty consistent with Social Security.  Next, Mr. McGrath explained the numbers. Currently, the total 



Board of Selectmen 

  January 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

3 

monthly cost of paying a 3% COLA equates to $3,328.34.  At 5%, it would increase to $5,547.25. In simple 

terms, the maximum COLA a retiree can receive on their first $14,000 is $35.00 per month. At 5%, it would 

increase to $58.33 per month.  On an annual basis, a 3% COLA costs roughly $40,000 and increasing it to 5% 

would cost roughly $66,500.  Lastly, Mr. McGrath reiterated the increase would be retroactive to July 1, 2022, 

and if approved this evening, would be included in the retirees’ January checks. Mr. Vaidya added that the cost 

will be paid for by investments in the retirement system and stressed that approval of the increase will not  “break 

the bank” so to speak.  He also pointed out that the retirement system is approximately 82%-84% funded and 

the increase won’t really affect anything and certainly not the funding schedule. He noted that the funding 

schedule only goes up if the retirement system experiences a large loss. Selectman Ampagoomian asked how 

many retirees are in the system.  Mr. McGrath said about 115. There being no further questions or comments, a 

motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to approve a 5% Local COLA Option for FY’23.  Vote 

yes/Begin, Collins, Paulhus, and Ampagoomian.   

 

Town Owned Property off Providence Road/Present: Bill Renaud and Steve O’Connell. Attorney Henry 

Lane reminded those listening that this property was part of a farm that was acquired for the building of the 

Sewage Treatment Plant and the State decided to build a highway right through the farm. Several ideas have 

come to the town but nothing made sense to move forward. Attorney Lanes clients have acquired the land 

abutting the property and it made sense to try and integrate the 20 acres into the 70 acres that they acquired. 

Currently it is zoned industrial, which there is not much demand for in this Town and the sure is not well suited 

for industrial use. Attorney Lane explained that the last time they were before the Board they requested more 

information on what they were thinking of for development, which is what they are here with tonight. He 

expressed that what the needs are in this town is housing, and the State has put incentives in place for developing 

housing. The Board would need to determine that the land is surplus and there is no immediate need for the land 

and then go through the process of appraisal and soliciting bids. Attorney Lane noted that if this site is developed 

there would be an opportunity to create better access to the High School Ball fields, which there is currently 

limited vehicular access. Selectman Melia noted that this is the third time that they have been before the 

Selectmen, the second time they had asked them to put together a development plan as to what they were looking 

to put in on this piece of land. Mr. Melia pointed out that it has been sitting there for years. He added that they 

are looking at a couple of perspective restaurants a car wash condominium and duplex homes for a total of 

approximately over 300 units. Mr. Melia felt it has been discussed enough and felt it was time to decide on what 

the Board wanted to move forward with. Mr. Paulus asked if there were slivers of land that would remain town 

property, while pointing to a map. Town Manager Gaudette explained that section is abutting property and our 

property is the yellow dash line, and the areas that do not show development could be developed, they just did 

not have a concept for it. Selectman Begin observed that it was still early in the process, but requested if it all 

goes through to consider the site lighting in the parking area for the fields. Selectman Ampagoomian asked if 

the access to the fields would have any water, sewer or underground infrastructures that could be used in that 

area. Mr. O’Connell replied that there would be water sewer electricity and cable. A motion/Mr. Melia, 

seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to move item J. Town Property off Providence Road from discussions to decisions. 

Vote yes/Unanimous. A motion/Mr. Melia seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to determine the property surplus and 

recommend the Town Manager to draft an article for the Spring Town Meeting to authorize the voters to grant 

the permission to sell it. Vote yes/Unanimous. Attorney Lane noted that they will need to go to the Planning 

Board for a zoning change first.  

   

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: Key Meetings Attended: 1) Monday, January 2, 2023 – Town Offices 

closed in observance of New Years Day. Tuesday, January 3, 2023 – Attended a meeting at Koopman Lumber 

with several representatives seeking to purchase the Town-Owned land off Providence Road for a mixed-use 

development. Thursday, January 5, 2023 – Met with Selectmen Melia to discuss the upcoming agenda and Town 

projects. Thursday, January 5, 2023 – Participated in the weekly Fire Station Construction Site Visit. 

Miscellaneous Calls/Visits with Residents, Staff, and Board Members. 2) Fire Station Project:  Weekly design 

team meetings continue to occur every Monday morning and weekly construction meetings every Thursday 

afternoon with the project team, the GC M. O’Connor, and the site contractor Leahy.  They have begun erecting 

steel on the main building are preparing to frame (wood) the outbuilding in the next week or two. The Design 

Team continues to work through bidding questions/change order clarifications.  The BPCC will meet next on 



Board of Selectmen 

  January 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

4 

1/18/2023. 3) Northbridge Elementary School Reuse Study:  The architect team from Abacus is currently 

developing a public meeting presentation for January 18, 2023, at 7 pm at Town Hall in the Selectmen’s Room.  

The surveyor has completed the field work and has sent in a draft existing conditions plan. The DEP Phase I 

study has been completed by the consultant Langan Environmental and is preparing to perform a Phase II as 

well. 4) Linwood Basketball Courts Project:  The Town Manager, the DPW Director and Activitas have met 

with the Parks and Recreation several times to discuss design programming.  The DPW will be assisting with 

suitable soil testing for the light bases under the direction of Activitas.  Activitas will be meeting with the Parks 

and Rec next on January 25th before issuing bid documents the following week.  5) Cable Advisory Committee:  

The Town Manager has been working with the Committee to develop needs for the next Franchise Agreement 

with Charter Communications.  The Town Manager is also working with Attorney Bill Hewig from KP Law to 

prepare for a public hearing to be held on January 24, 2023 at Northbridge Town Hall in the Selectmen’s Meeting 

Room. 6) FY2024 Budget and Capital Development: Planning for next year’s budget is underway. The Town 

Manager is working on preliminary revenues and available capital funds in preparation for Budget Development 

during the upcoming winter.  Staff assignments have been distributed with budget/capital submissions and are 

due next week on Friday, January 13, 2023. 

 

SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS : Selectman Begin 1) Commended Animal Control Officer Daniel Chauvin 

for his response to a sick animal nearby his home. His response was passionate and professional, and he would 

like to thank him for that. Selectman Ampagoomian 1) extended condolences on behalf of the Board of 

Selectmen to the Carr family who lost Helenora Carr, who was a mother, and grandmother. 2) asked if the catch 

basins would be cleaned and cleared from debris. DPW Director Jamie Luchini replied that they have been doing 

it throughout the rainstorms, prior to, during and after. 3) asked about the picnic table at the Town Hall Annex 

if it belonged to us or someone else. He explained the reason for him asking is due to the condition of the picnic 

table could be dangerous. 4) noted the beech tree in Memorial Park. Mr. Luchini explained that he had an arborist 

that checked out the beech tree and they will begin treating it in the Spring. He noted that the Christmas Tree 

that is there is dead and will be replaced. Unfortunately, it will not be quite as big but he is looking in the 20-25 

foot range. 5) thanked the organization that put lights up around town for the Holidays. Selectman Collins 1) 

asked if Purgatory Road would be repaired this year. Mr. Luchini stated that he is not sure yet until he gets 

through the Spring season to see where the roads are at. He explained that it all depends on how the roads hold 

up through the melting and refreezing, but it is on his radar. Selectman Collins noted the flooding in that area as 

well. Mr. Luchini added that they will look to do something similar to what they did on Mendon Road.  

     

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None  

CORRESPONDENCE/None 

EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 

 

A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to adjourn the public meeting. Vote yes/Unanimous.  

 

Meeting Adjourned: 7:51 PM 

 

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

         Brian Paulhus, Clerk  

 

 

/mjc 

  



Board of Selectmen 

  January 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

5 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

August 12, 2022 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

A. 1) September 12, 2022 

-copy of September 12, 2022 meeting minutes 

 

2) September 26, 2022 

-Copy of September 26, 2022 meeting minutes 

 

3) October 3, 2022 

 -Copy of October 3, 2022 meeting minutes 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING (7:05 PM): B. Early voting by mail (Votes Act) / Present: Linda  

Zywien, Town Clerk 

 -Copy of votes Act information  

 

III. APPOINTMENTS/By the Board of Selectmen [Vote to appoint]: C.1) Jean-Paul Corriveau,  

Cable Advisory Committee [Present:  Harry Berkowitz, CAC Chair] 

 -Copy of Talent Bank Application  

 

By the Town Manager [Vote to Affirm] C.2) Melissa LaBounty, Accounting Clerk 

 -Copy of offer letter 

 -Copy of cover letter 

 -Copy of resume 

-Copy of application 

  

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 

 

V. DECISIONS: 

D. Annual Town Election [May 16, 2023] / Vote to give notice to the Town Clerk to place 

vacancies from elected boards on the Town Election Warrant 

 -Copy of memo regarding the notice of vacancies  

 

E. Whitinsville Golf Club, 179 Fletcher Street, Whitinsville, MA/ Application for a Change 

of Officers Present: Kimberly Martin, Manager 

 -Copy of application for a Change of Officers 

 -Copy of Articles of Organization  

  

F. Blackstone Valley Chamber of Commerce/Application for a weekday Entertainment 

License for their Open House scheduled for Wednesday, January 25, 2023, from 4:30 PM – 

6:30 PM at 670 Linwood Ave., Suite 5, Whitinsville, MA 01588/Present: Jeannie Hebert, 

President 

 -Copy of one-day entertainment license application  

 -Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 

 -Copy Workers’ Compensation Affidavit  



Board of Selectmen 

  January 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

6 

G. Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [October 19, 2022 ]/Vote to accept recommendations 

 -Copy of October 19, 2022 Safety Committee Meeting Minutes  

 

H. Pine Grove Cemetery/Vote to approve the sale of Lot 506A, one grave, Yew Ave. (South) 

to Suzzane Lunt and Virginia Lunt 

 -Copy of Pine Grove Cemetery Deed  

 

I. Northbridge Retirement Board / Vote to adopt a Local COLA Option up to 5%  

Present:  Neil Vaidya, Town Acct./Ex-Officio and Scott McGrath, Retirement Board 

Admin. 

 -Copy of letter from the Northbridge Retirement Board regarding the Local COLA Option 

 -Copy of letter from PERAC regarding the Local COLA Option  

 

J. Town Owned Property off Providence Road/Present:  Bill Renaud and Steve O’Connell 
 -Copy of letter regarding the land off Providence Road.  

 

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

 -Copy of Town Manager’s Report from January 2, 2023 – January 6, 2023 

 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS  

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA  

X. CORRESPONDENCE  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

 



 

1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

 

January 23, 2023 

 

A virtual meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Collins at 7:00 PM, using Zoom 

Meeting software. Board Members Present: Ampagoomian Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. Also present: 

Town Manager Gaudette.  

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 

The Chairman read aloud the following statement: On July 16, 2022, Governor Baker signed into law An Act 

Relative to Extending Certain State of Emergency Accommodations, which, among other things, extends the 

expiration of the provisions pertaining to the Open Meeting Law to March 31, 2023. Specifically, this extension 

allows public bodies to continue holding meetings remotely without a quorum of the public body physically 

present at a meeting location, and to provide "adequate, alternative" access to remote meetings. The Act does 

not make any new changes to the Open Meeting Law other than extending the expiration date of the temporary 

provisions regarding remote meetings from July 15, 2022, to March 31, 2023. 

 

Join Zoom Meeting: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85712906976?pwd=SXIxWFBmOUdkNHdSQy9wR3ZvbndPQT09 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING/None 

 

APPOINTMENTS/By the Town Manager (Vote to Affirm): Marc Bessette, DPW Laborer/Present: Jamie 

Luchini, DPW Director. Mr. Luchini introduced Mr. Bessette noting that if appointed tonight he will be a fourth 

generation Highway employee. He added that he is very mechanically inclined, he interviewed well and he feels 

he will be a great addition to the Highway Department. Mr. Bessette stated that he is looking forward to this 

opportunity. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to affirm the appointment of Marc Bessette as 

DPW Laborer. Roll call vote: Selectman Melia/Yes, Selectman/Ampagoomian/yes, Selectman Begin/yes, 

Selectman Paulhus/yes and Selectmen Collins/yes.  

 

By the Board of Selectmen: Anthony Genga, Deputy Chief, Safety Committee Alternate. A motion/Mr. 

Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to appoint Anthony Genga, Deputy Chief, as the Safety Committee 

Alternate. Roll call vote: Selectman Melia/Yes, Selectman/Ampagoomian/yes, Selectman Begin/yes, Selectman 

Paulhus/yes and Selectmen Collins/yes. 

 

CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

Tri-Valley Front Runners/Frank Nealon Boston Tune Up – 15K [Saturday, April 1, 2023]. A motion/Mr. 

Ampagomina, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve the request from Tri Valley Front Runners to hold the Frank 

Nealon Boston Tune Up – 15K on Saturday, April 1, 2023. Roll call vote: Selectman Melia/Yes, 

Selectman/Ampagoomian/yes, Selectman Begin/yes, Selectman Paulhus/yes and Selectmen Collins/yes. 

 

Moon Management dba The Neighborhood Kitchen, 125 Church Street, Whitinsville/Request for a one-

day wine and malt license from February 10, 2023 to February 12, 2023 from 4 PM to 11 PM /Present: 

Mark Moon. Mrs. Moon explained that those interested in attending will purchase tickets in advance where 

they will choose their meal in advance. To make it special they wanted to offer beer and wine and champagne. 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the request for a one-day wine and malt license 

from February 10, 2023 to February 12, 2023 from 4 PM to 11 PM. Roll call vote: Selectman Melia/Yes, 

Selectman/Ampagoomian/yes, Selectman Begin/yes, Selectman Paulhus/yes and Selectmen Collins/yes. 

 

A.2.

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85712906976?pwd=SXIxWFBmOUdkNHdSQy9wR3ZvbndPQT09


Board of Selectmen 

  January 23, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

2 

Spring Annual Town Meeting [May 2, 2023] / Vote to close the warrant on Friday, March 3, 2023 at 12:00 

Noon. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Paulhus to close the warrant on Friday, March 3, 2023 at 12:00 PM 

Noon. Roll call vote: Selectman Melia/Yes, Selectman/Ampagoomian/yes, Selectman Begin/yes, Selectman 

Paulhus/yes and Selectmen Collins/yes. 

 

Pine Grove Cemetery Deed/Vote to approve the sale of lot No. 41A, one grave, Elm Ave. (North) to Steven 

Crosby. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Begin to approve the sale of lot No. 41A, one grave, Elm 

Ave. (North) to Steven Crosby. Roll call vote: Selectman Melia/Yes, Selectman/Ampagoomian/yes, Selectman 

Begin/yes, Selectman Paulhus/yes and Selectmen Collins/yes. 

 

Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [December 21, 2022]/Vote to accept the recommendations. Selectman 

Paulhus, regarding the comment made by Chief Labrie about the installation of cameras at the courts, asked if 

that was something that should be included in the design. Mr. Luchini replied that they have that in the bid as an 

Add Alt and it is in the design. If it cannot e included in that they can look into it after the fact. Selectman Melia 

asked where the set up would be and who would manage it. Mr. Luchini replied that the set up would be onsite 

inside the concession stand and hold footage for a week to two weeks. Chief Labrie noted that depending on the 

quality there is a chance that the Police Department can dial into the system from the station. A motion/Mr. 

Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to accept the recommendations of the December 21, 2022 Safety Committee 

Meeting minutes. Roll call vote: Selectman Melia/Yes, Selectman/Ampagoomian/yes, Selectman Begin/yes, 

Selectman Paulhus/yes and Selectmen Collins/yes. 

 

DISCUSSIONS/None 

  

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: Reminder: Tomorrow January 24, 2023 at 7 PM there will be a public 

hearing for the Cable contract renewal.  

 

SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS: Selectman Ampagoomian 1) attended the pining ceremony for Deputy 

Chief Genga and Captain Thomas Valdivia.  

 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

CORRESPONDENCE/None 

EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 

 

A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to adjourn the meeting. Roll call vote: Selectman Melia/Yes, 

Selectman/Ampagoomian/yes, Selectman Begin/yes, Selectman Paulhus/yes and Selectmen Collins/yes. 

 

Meeting Adjourned: 7:20 PM 

 

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

         Brian Paulhus, Clerk  

 

 

/mjc 

  



Board of Selectmen 

  January 23, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

3 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

January 23, 2023 

 

I.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING/None 

 

III. APPOINTMENTS/By the Town Manager (Vote to Affirm): A. Marc Bessette, DPW 

Laborer/Present: Jamie Luchini, DPW Director 

 -Copy of appointment letter  

 -Copy of application 

  

B. By the Board of Selectmen: Anthony Genga, Deputy Chief, Safety Committee 

Alternate  

 -Copy of email request  

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 

 

V. DECISIONS: 

C. Tri-Valley Front Runners/Frank Nealon Boston Tune Up – 15K [Saturday, April 

1, 2023]  

-Copy of Hold Harmless Agreement  

-Copy of map for the Frank Nealon Boston Tune Up 

-Copy of email approval from the Highway Department 

-Copy of email approval from the Police Department 

 

D. Moon Management dba The Neighborhood Kitchen, 125 Church Street, 

Whitinsville/Request for a one-day wine and malt license from February 10, 2023 to 

February 12, 2023 from 4 PM to 11 PM /Present: Mark Moon 

-Copy of application for a Special License  

-Copy of Revenue Attestation and Protection Attestation 

-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Affidavit  

-Copy of Hold Harmless  

-Copy of Certificate of Insurance  

-Copy of License Routing Slip  

 

E. Spring Annual Town Meeting [May 2, 2023] / Vote to close the warrant on Friday, 

March 3, 2023 at 12:00 Noon/No documentation 

 

F. Pine Grove Cemetery Deed/Vote to approve the sale of lot No. 41A, one grave, Elm 

Ave. (North) to Steven Crosby 

-Copy of Pine Grove Cemetery Deed  

 



Board of Selectmen 

  January 23, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

4 

G. Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [December 21, 2022]/Vote to accept the 

recommendations 

 -Copy of Safety Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

VI. DISCUSSIONS/None 

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT/None 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS/No documentation 

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

X. CORRESPONDENCE/None  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION/None  

 



 

1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

 

February 13, 2023 

 

A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Collins at 6:30 PM, Northbridge 

Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Board Members Present: Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia and 

Paulhus. Also Present: Town Manager Gaudette. Selectman Begin is absent and it is duly noted.   

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING/None 

 

APPOINTMENTS/By the Town Manager [Vote to Affirm]: Caleb Kennedy, Operator In 

Training/Sewer Division. Mr. Luchini explained that Mr. Kennedy interviewed for the open position with 

the Sewer Treatment Plant, and comes with background in excavation and has knowledge on water and 

sewer lines. Mr. Kennedy stated he is looking forward to this opportunity in the Town of Northbridge. Mr. 

Havalotti added the himself and the Sewer Department staff welcome him and look forward to it. A 

motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to affirm the appointment of Caleb Kennedy as Operator 

in Training to the Sewer Division. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 

 

CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None  

 

Blackstone Valley Chamber of Commerce/1) request permission to hold the Sidewalk Sale event on 

Church Street on Saturday, June 17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM. A motion/Mr. Melia, seconded/Mr. 

Ampagoomian to approve the request to hold the Sidewalk Sale event on Church Street on Saturday, June 

17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 2) request permission 

to close Church Street on Saturday, June 17, 2023 from 9 AM to 3 PM beginning at Park Street to 

the intersection of Cross Street. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the request 

to close Church Street on Saturday, June 17, 2023 from 9 AM to 3 PM beginning at Park Street to the 

intersection of Cross Street. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 3) request for a one-

day entertainment license for June 17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM for a DJ. A motion/Mr. 

Ampagoomian , seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the request for a one-day entertainment license for June 

17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM for a DJ.  Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 4) request 

permission to hang a banner across Church Street from June 4, 2023 to June 18, 2023 to  advertise 

the Sidewalk Sale on June 17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. 

Melia to approve the request to hang a banner across Church Street from June 4, 2023 to June 18, 2023 to  

advertise the Sidewalk Sale on June 17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia 

and Paulhus. 

 

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: Draft Warrant for May 2, 2023 Spring Annual Town Meeting. 

Selectman Ampagoomian asked if articles 18-20 are place holders. Town Manager Gaudette replied that is 

correct they are place holders awaiting draft language from Town Counsel. Selectman Melia asked if there 

will be a zoning article coming forward. Town Manger Gaudette stated that there could be as we have had 

interest in purchasing land from the town and they are working with the Planning Board right now for a 

zoning change. We are not sure at this time if it will be a petition article or zoning change from the Planning 

Board. Town Manager Gaudette stated that he would like the have the Board vote tonight just to add just 

the Board of Selectmen articles to the warrant. Selectman Collins noted that articles 22 and 23, which are 

the bylaw review changes, are not the complete changes as the committee is unable to complete the review 

of the entire bylaw in time before the Spring Town Meeting deadlines. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, 

A.3.



Board of Selectmen 

  February 13, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

2 

seconded/Mr. Melia to move Draft Warrant for May 2, 2023 Spring Annual Town Meeting from the Town 

Managers Report to Decisions. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. A motion/Mr. 

Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to place the Board of Selectmen’s articles on the Spring Annual Town 

Meeting Warrant [May 2, 2023]. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. Selectman Melia 

asked about the former Rockdale Fire Station. Town Manager Gaudette explained that they have had 

discussions with designers for the TIPS projects regarding the loss of space on Sutton Street and Providence 

Road to meet the requirements of DOT, which we are holding off on that property because we initially 

envisioned making a municipal parking lot out of it. Selectmen Collins asked what a ride on scrubber is. 

Town Manager Gaudette replied that it is interior use.  

 

SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS: Selectmen Paulhus 1) reported that he was asked to be a part of a pledge 

at the Middle School for their National Honor Society Induction Ceremony which he accepted and attended. 

He noted that it was wonderful event with all the young kids participating in such a great program. 

Selectman Melia 1) reported that a resident located in the Benson Road area saw a Verizon vehicle and the 

individual spoke to the Verizon Staff who instructed that he was measuring for FIOS. Selectman Melia 

asked if the Town Manager could look into this further and further questioned if they should hold off on 

the cable agreement. Town Manger Gaudette explained that if someone files a permit with a franchise 

agreement you typically would approve it unless there was some major reason not to approve it, but there 

are multiple towns that have more than one franchise agreement.  

     

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None  

CORRESPONDENCE/None 

EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for February 27, 2023.  

 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to adjourn the meeting. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, 

Collins, Melia and Paulhus. 

 

 

Meeting Adjourned: 7:17 PM 

 

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

         Brian Paulhus, Clerk  

 

 

/mjc 

  



Board of Selectmen 

  February 13, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

3 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

February 13, 2023 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES/None 

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING/None  

 

III. APPOINTMENTS/A. By the Town Manager [Vote to Affirm]: Caleb Kennedy, Operator In  

Training/Sewer Division 

-Copy of offer letter 

-Copy of application 

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 

 

IV. DECISIONS: 

B. Blackstone Valley Chamber of Commerce/1) request permission to hold the Sidewalk 

Sale event on Church Street on Saturday, June 17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM; 2) request 

permission to close Church Street on Saturday, June 17, 2023 from 9 AM to 3 PM 

beginning at Park Street to the intersection of Cross Street; 3) request for a one-day 

entertainment license for June 17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM for a DJ; 4) request 

permission to hang a banner across Church Street from June 4, 2023 to June 18, 2023 to  

advertise the Sidewalk Sale on June 17, 2023 from 10 AM to 2 PM 

 -Copy of letter requesting to host the event, road closure and banner 

-Copy of email from DPW and Police for approval 

-Copy of one-day entertainment license application 

-Copy of Revenue Enforcement and Protection Attestation 

-Copy of Workers’ Compensation Affidavit  

 

VI. DISCUSSIONS/None 

    

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT 

 C. Draft Warrant for May 2, 2023 Spring Annual Town Meeting 

 -Copy of draft warrant 

  

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS /No documentation 

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

X. CORRESPONDENCE/None 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 

 



 

1 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S MEETING 

 

February 27, 2023 

 

A meeting of the Board of Selectmen was called to order by Chairman Collins at 6:30 PM, 

Northbridge Town Hall, 7 Main Street, Whitinsville, MA. Board Members Present: 

Ampagoomian, Begin, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. Also present: Town Manager Gaudette. 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by those present. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. 1) October 17, 2022. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, 

seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the October 17, 2022 meeting minutes as presented with the 

readings omitted. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, Melia and Paulhus. Abstain: Begin. 2) 

November 7, 2022. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the November 

7, 2022 meeting minutes as presented with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Collins, 

Melia and Paulhus. Abstain: Begin. 3) November 21, 2022. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, 

seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the November 7, 2022 meeting minutes as presented with the 

readings omitted. Vote yes/Unanimous. 4) November 22, 2022 [Joint Meeting w/ School 

Committee]. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the November 7, 2022 

meeting minutes as presented with the readings omitted. Vote yes/Ampagoomian, Begin, Melia 

and Paulhus. Abstain: Collins. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING/None 

 

APPOINTMENTS/By the Town Manager [Vote to Affirm]: Sharon Emerick, Town 

Accountant/Finance Director. Town Manager Gaudette explained the former Town Accountant 

Neil Vaidya, who had been here for 17 years, recently left Northbridge for a new opportunity, 

which created a vacancy for the Town Accountant position. Town Manager Gaudette explained 

that Mrs. Emerick has a lot of good experience and is familiar with the software here. Mrs. Emerick 

stated that she has been a Town Accounting for 25 years and Assistant Town Accountant for 10 

before that. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian seconded/Mr. Melia to affirm the Town Manager’s 

appointment of Sharon Emerick as the Town Accountant/Finance Director effective Wednesday, 

March 1, 2023. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

Melissa LaBounty, Assistant Town Accountant. Town Manager Gaudette explained that Mrs. 

LaBounty was recently appointed as the Accounting Clerk but due to another vacancy in the Town 

Accountant Office she will step into this roll. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia 

to affirm the Town Manager’s appointment of Melissa LaBounty as the Assistant Town 

Accountant. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

By the Board of Selectmen [Vote to Appoint]: David Blauvelt: 1) Historical 

Commission/Present-Kenneth Warchol. Mr. Warchol reviewed Mr. Blauvelt’s resume, 

background and experience, following it up stating that his experience is impressive and extremely 

fitting for the Historical Commission. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to 

appoint Mr. David Blauvelt to the Historical Commission. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

A.4.



Board of Selectmen 

  February 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

2 

2) Whitinsville Downtown Crossroads Historical District Commission (Alternate)/Present-

Kelly Rice-Gamble, WDCHDC member. Ms. Rice-Gamble explained that they would like to 

have Mr. Blauvelt join the WDCHDC as an alternate. She reiterated that with his background in 

historical preservation he would be extremely fitting for this Commission. A motion/Mr. 

Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to appoint Mr. David Blauvelt to the Whitinsville Downtown 

Crossroads Historical District Commission. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

3) Michael Wilkes, Economic Development Committee. Mr. Wiles expressed great gratitude for 

the opportunity to serve on this Committee. Mr. Wilkes noted that he also serves on the 

Northbridge Redevelopment Authority and greatly enjoys working with members of the town. A 

motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Ampagoomian to appoint Mr. Michael Wilkes to the Economic 

Development Committee. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT/None 

 

Vote to accept monetary donation gift in the amount of $100.00 from Ms. Rebecca Rushford 

– to be expended by the Conservation Commission. A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, 

seconded/Mr. Melia to accept the monetary donation gift in the amount of $100.00 from Ms. 

Rebecca Rushford – to be expended by the Conservation Commission. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [March 23, 2022]/Vote to accept recommendations. 

Town Manager Gaudette noted the date of these minutes and explained that they had been missed 

due to staffing changes. He explained that the former DPW Director had just retired, but the 

committee was able to get these together to move forward with them now. Selectman Paulus asked 

about the Grainte Street Commercial vehicles issue and if there was any follow up on it. Chief 

Labrie replied that they identified who the vehicle belonged to and they were able to get it removed. 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to accept the recommendations of the March 

23, 2022 Safety Committee Meeting Minutes. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

 

Pine Grove Cemetery Deeds: 1) Vote to approve the sale of Lots 144A and B (2 cremation 

plots) Yew Ave S. to Rodney and Doris Lee. A motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Melia to 

approve the sale of lots 144A and B (2 cremation plots) Yew Ave S. to Rodney and Doris Lee. 

Vote yes/Unanimous. 2) 25 A Birch Path, South (single grave) to Laura Valanzola. A 

motion/Mr. Begin, seconded/Mr. Melia to approve the sale of lot 25 A Birch Path, South (single 

grave) to Laura Valanzola. Vote yes/Unanimous. 

  

TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: Budget and warrant Update. Town Manager Gaudette 

informed the Board that the Governor released her Cherry Sheet preliminary budget numbers and 

identifies a 2% increase for Unrestricted Government Aid. We will be working through those 

numbers this week and meeting with the Finance Committee and will start to have Department 

Head budget presentations. The warrant closes this Friday, March 3, 2023 and noon.  

 

SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS: Selectman Ampagoomian 1) noted that there was a van parked 

at Riverdale Cemetery, that was slightly suspicious. Chief Labrie took note. 2) noting the train 

derailment on Ohio, he voiced concern for the need to have a plan in place if something like this 

were to ever happen in town. He asked if the town had some kind of contingency plan in place. 



Board of Selectmen 

  February 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

3 

Town Manager Gaudette reasoned that we do have local emergency plans and one thing that we 

are very fortunate to have is mutual aid agreements with surrounding communities along with great 

assistance from the State Department of Fire Services. On a smaller scale a couple of years ago 

there was a tractor trailer that was filled with gasoline that crashed on Linwood Ave., and we were 

able to meet with those departments and the emergency response was taken very seriously. 

Selectman Melia 1) asked for an update on the Verizon FIOS. Town Manager Gaudette stated 

that they have been playing phone tag but hope to be in touch soon. 2) asked if there were any 

updates on the TIF agreement. Town Manager Gaudette emailed the consultant two weeks ago and 

they were working on signatures on the final document and explained that they are likely working 

through financing and designing the building. 

 

ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

CORRESPONDENCE/None 

EXECUTIVE SESSION/None  

 

A motion/Mr. Ampagoomian, seconded/Mr. Melia to adjourn the public meeting. Vote 

yes/Unanimous. 

 

Meeting Adjourned: 7:27 PM 

 

 

         Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

         Brian Paulhus, Clerk  

 

 

/mjc 

  



Board of Selectmen 

  February 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

4 

LIST OF DOCUMENTATION 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETING - OPEN SESSION 

 

February 27, 2023 

 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: A. 1) October 17, 2022  

-Copy of October 17, 2022 minutes  

 

2) November 7, 2022 

 -Copy of November 7, 2022 minutes 

 

3) November 21, 2022  

-Copy of November 21, 2022 minutes  

 

4) November 22, 2022 [Joint Meeting w/ School Committee] 

 -Copy of November 22, 2022 minutes  

 

II. PUBLIC HEARING/None 

 

III. APPOINTMENTS/By the Town Manager [Vote to Affirm]: B. Sharon Emerick,  

Town Accountant/Finance Director 

 -Copy of offer letter  

 -Copy of cover letter 

 -Copy of resume  

 -Copy of Application  

 

C. Melissa LaBounty, Assistant Town Accountant  

 -Copy of memo regarding the appointment of Melissa LaBounty 

 -Copy of offer letter 

 

By the Board of Selectmen [Vote to Appoint]: D. David Blauvelt: 1) Historical 

Commission/Present-Kenneth Warchol and  

2) Whitinsville Downtown Crossroads Historical District Commission 

(Alternate)/Present-Kelly Rice-Gamble, WDCHDC member 

-Copy of Talent Bank Form  

-Copy of Email from the Historical Society for the Alternate appointment 

 

E. Michael Wilkes, Economic Development Committee 

 -Copy of talent bank form  

 

IV. CITIZENS' COMMENTS/INPUT 

 

IV. DECISIONS: 

F. Vote to accept monetary donation gift in the amount of $100.00 from Ms. Rebecca 

Rushford – to be expended by the Conservation Commission  

 -Copy memo from the Conservation Commission for the donation  



Board of Selectmen 

  February 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

5 

 -Copy of check in the amount of $100.00 

 

G. Safety Committee Meeting Minutes [March 23, 2022]/Vote to accept 

recommendations  

 -Copy of March 23, 2022 Safety Committee Meeting minutes  

 

H. Pine Grove Cemetery Deeds: 1) Vote to approve the sale of Lots 144A and B (2 

cremation plots) Yew Ave S. to Rodney and Doris Lee  

-Copy of Pine grove cemetery deed for Lots 144A and B Yew Ave S. -Rodney & Doris 

Lee  

 

2) 25 A Birch Path, South (single grave) to Laura Valanzola  

-Copy of Pine grove cemetery deed for 25 A Birch Path, South (single grave) to Laura 

Valanzola 

 

VI. DISCUSSIONS/None 

    

VII. TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT: I. Budget and warrant Update/No documentation  

 

VIII. SELECTMEN'S CONCERNS/No documentation 

     

IX. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/None 

 

X. CORRESPONDENCE/None 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION/None 

 



B.



















1

Melissa Ciaramitaro

From: Lisa Gaylord
Sent: Wednesday, April 05, 2023 12:48 PM
To: Adam Gaudette; Tim Labrie; Daniel; Melissa Ciaramitaro; Sharon Susienka
Subject: Heather Holt hearing

 
Chief Labrie requested I follow up with you in regards to an animal complaint hearing involving Heather Holt 
and Samantha Egan. 
Heather Holt had a magistrate hearing yesterday via ZOOM with Uxbridge Court re: citation no.1070. 
Clerk Magistrate found her responsible for failure to restrain ($50 fine) and not responsible for attacking 
another dog. 
 
 
Lisa Gaylord 
Admin Assistant 
Northbridge Police Department 
508‐234‐6211 







Town of Northbridge, MA
Wednesday, April 5, 2023

Chapter 8. Regulation of Animals

Article 8-100. DOGS

§ 8-101. Definitions.

The following words and phrases, as used in this section, unless the context requires otherwise, shall
have the following meanings:

HUNTING OR SPORTING DOG
An animal under the control and direction of its owner or keeper while used in training or actual
hunting. It also includes animals used in events or trials participating under sanctioned
competitions.

KEEPER
Any person, other than the owner, harboring in his possession any animal. The keeper shall be
held liable for the action of the animal.

KENNEL
A pack or collection of dogs on a single premises, including a commercial boarding or training
kennel, commercial breeder kennel, domestic charitable corporation kennel, personal kennel or
veterinary kennel, as defined in MGL c. 140, § 136A.
[Amended 10-25-2011 ATM, Art. 7; 10-22-2013 ATM, Art. 8]

OWNER
Includes corporations, societies, associations, partnerships and individuals, provided that they
show ownership of an animal by possession of a current and valid license or other satisfactory
proof of ownership.

WORKING DOG
An animal used in the performance of a particular set of tasks. The animal must be engaged in
such tasks to be exempt from § 8-102. Examples include guard dogs, Seeing Eye dogs and dogs
used to control a farmer's flock or herd.

§ 8-102. Restraint; exceptions.

No person shall permit a dog owned or kept by him beyond the confines of the property of the owner or
keeper unless the dog is held firmly on a leash. The length of a leash shall not exceed six feet when off
the property of the owner or keeper. An owner or keeper may use a leash of greater length to restrain a
dog on the property of the owner or keeper, provided that the dog is securely confined to the premises
of the owner or keeper. Exceptions are animals, which are classified as hunting or sporting dogs, as
well as working dogs, while used in such capacity.

§ 8-103. Prima facie evidence of violation.

https://ecode360.com/print/14688391#14688391
https://ecode360.com/print/14688392#14688392
https://ecode360.com/print/14688393#14688393
https://ecode360.com/print/14688394#14688394
https://ecode360.com/print/14688395#14688395
mciaramitaro
Highlight



A. 

B. 

A. 

B. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

C. 

D. 

The unauthorized presence of any animal on public lands or on the land of any person other than the
owner or keeper of such animal when such animal is not restrained as above-mentioned shall be prima
facie evidence of a violation of the provisions of this section.

§ 8-104. Violations and penalties.

[Amended 10-25-2011 ATM, Art. 7]

This dog regulation bylaw may be enforced pursuant to the provisions of MGL c. 40, § 21D, and §
1-109A of this Code of Bylaws.

Except as otherwise provided, the penalty for the first offense in a calendar year shall be $10; the
penalty for the second offense shall be $25, and the penalty for the third and each subsequent
offense in the same calendar year shall be $50.

§ 8-105. Licensing requirements.

Any owner or keeper of a dog six months of age or older in the Town of Northbridge shall cause
that dog to be licensed as required by MGL c. 140 within the stipulated time. An owner or keeper of
fewer than four dogs over three months of age may elect to secure a kennel license in lieu of
licensing the dogs individually as provided by MGL c. 140, § 137A.
[Amended 10-22-2013 ATM, Art. 8]

Fees.

The annual fee for every dog license, except as otherwise provided for by law, shall be $10,
unless a certificate of a registered veterinarian who performed the operation that such dog has
been altered and has thereby been deprived of the power of breeding or producing offspring
has been shown to the Town Clerk, in which case the fee shall be $6. If the Town Clerk is
satisfied that the certification by the veterinarian who altered the dog cannot be obtained,
he/she may accept in lieu thereof a statement, under the penalties of perjury, by a registered
veterinarian describing the dog and stating that he has examined the dog and, in his opinion,
the dog is not capable of breeding or producing offspring by reason of spaying or neutering.
Until the veterinarian has examined the dog in question, the license fee for the licensing period
shall be at the rate of $10. When applying for a license, the applicant must also show proof by
a veterinarian's certificate that the dog has been vaccinated against rabies, as required by
MGL c. 140.
[Amended 10-24-2006 ATM, Art. 23; 10-25-2011 ATM, Art. 7]

No fee shall be charged for a license for a dog specifically trained to lead or serve a blind
person or a deaf person, provided that the Division of the Blind or Deaf certified that such dog
is so trained and actually in the services of a blind or deaf person.

Kennel fees shall be as follows:

Four dogs or fewer: $40.
[Amended 10-24-2006 ATM, Art. 23]

Ten dogs or fewer: $75.

Twenty-five dogs or fewer: $100.

No license fee or part thereof shall be refunded because of subsequent death, loss, spaying,
neutering or removal from the commonwealth or other disposal of the dog.

Should any owner or keeper of a dog fail to license that dog before June 1, that owner or keeper
shall pay a late fee of $10 per household before obtaining said license, except a dog brought into

https://ecode360.com/print/16099666#16099666
https://ecode360.com/print/16099667#16099667
https://ecode360.com/print/14688400#14688400
https://ecode360.com/print/14688401#14688401
https://ecode360.com/print/14688402#14688402
https://ecode360.com/print/14688403#14688403
https://ecode360.com/print/14688404#14688404
https://ecode360.com/print/14688405#14688405
https://ecode360.com/print/14688406#14688406
https://ecode360.com/print/14688407#14688407
https://ecode360.com/print/14688408#14688408
https://ecode360.com/print/14688409#14688409


E. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

J. 

A. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

B. 

the Town as provided in MGL c. 140, § 138. This late fee shall be applicable from the 61st day after
the arrival of such dog.
[Amended 10-24-2006 ATM, Art. 23; 10-25-2011 ATM, Art. 7]

Any person maintaining a kennel in the Town of Northbridge who fails to license as prescribed by
this section and the laws of the commonwealth shall pay a late fee of $20. Such fees as are
collected by the Animal Control Officer shall be accounted for and paid over to the Town Treasurer
to be incorporated into the Animal Control Fund.
[Amended 10-24-2006 ATM, Art. 23]

§ 8-106. Impoundment.

[Amended 10-24-2006 ATM, Art. 23; 10-25-2011 ATM, Art. 7]
The Animal Control Officer can impound a dog and fine the owner or keeper of said dog pursuant to § 8-
104 of this chapter for the following offenses:

Being an unlicensed dog.

Being found at large when the owner or keeper is not present.

Injuring or menacing a person.

Injuring a domestic animal or fowl.

Chasing vehicles (autos, motorcycles or trucks).

Chasing bicycles.

Causing any disturbance (barking, howling or disturbing).

Being unmuzzled off the owner's or keeper's property while a muzzling order is in effect.

Being found at large at any school yard and/or recreational area.

Violation of a quarantine.

§ 8-107. Muzzling.

[Amended 10-24-2006 ATM, Art. 23]

The Animal Control Officer can order a dog to be muzzled for the following:

Biting or menacing a person.

Injuring a domestic animal or fowl.

Excessive barking.

Exceptions. Only the Animal Control Officer has the power to remove a muzzle order if he so
desires, i.e., an exception is feeding time.

§ 8-108. Quarantine orders.

For biting a person, the animal must be quarantined subject to MGL c. 129, § 21. Any and all violations
of a quarantine order will be subject to general penalties under MGL c. 129, § 30.

§ 8-109. Storage fees.

https://ecode360.com/print/14688410#14688410
https://ecode360.com/print/14688412#14688412
https://ecode360.com/print/14688413#14688413
https://ecode360.com/print/14688414#14688414
https://ecode360.com/print/14688415#14688415
https://ecode360.com/print/14688416#14688416
https://ecode360.com/print/14688417#14688417
https://ecode360.com/print/14688418#14688418
https://ecode360.com/print/14688419#14688419
https://ecode360.com/print/14688420#14688420
https://ecode360.com/print/14688421#14688421
https://ecode360.com/print/14688423#14688423
https://ecode360.com/print/14688424#14688424
https://ecode360.com/print/14688425#14688425
https://ecode360.com/print/14688426#14688426
https://ecode360.com/print/14688427#14688427


A. 

B. 

C. 

A. 

B. 

C. 

A. 

B. 

(1) 

A storage fee of $5 per day will be levied if said animal is impounded.

Impounded, unlicensed dogs will be kept for 10 days. During such time, a description of the animal
will be posted at the Town Hall. To obtain the release of an unlicensed animal, the owner must
license the animal and pay all fines and storage fees. If the animal is not claimed, it will be sold to
anyone paying the fines and storage of said animal. If not claimed or sold within the ten-day period,
the animal shall be destroyed in a humane manner.

The owner of an impounded licensed dog will be notified by registered mail of the animal's
confinement. The animal shall be kept until the owner pays all fines and storage. If not claimed
within 30 days, it will be destroyed in a humane manner.

§ 8-110. Estrous cycle.

If found at large, dogs in the estrous cycle (heat) can be impounded. If complaints have been
recorded, the Animal Control Officer may require the owner to remove the animal from the area of
disturbance. If impounded, the owner shall be notified by registered mail of the animal's
confinement.
[Amended 10-24-2006 ATM, Art. 23]

A fine of $25 shall be levied against the owner or keeper of an unspayed female dog in heat
running at large.

Impounded, unlicensed dogs in heat shall be kept for 10 days. During such time a description of the
animal will be posted in the Town Hall. If the animal is not claimed, it shall be sold to anyone paying
the fines and storage of said animal. If not claimed or sold within the ten-day period, the animal
shall be destroyed in a humane manner.

§ 8-111. Appointment of Animal Control Officer and assistants.

[Amended 10-24-2006 ATM, Art. 23]
Subject to approval of the Board of Selectmen, the Town Manager shall appoint an Animal Control
Officer, who shall be the Dog Officer, and such assistants as are deemed necessary to administer and
enforce this bylaw relating to dogs and the sections of MGL c. 140, as amended, relating to dogs.

§ 8-112. Kennels.

[Amended 10-25-2011 ATM, Art. 7]

Kennel license required. A kennel license shall be required for all kennels and shall be classified as
a Grade One License for the keeping of four dogs, a Grade Two License for the keeping of five to
10 dogs, and a Grade Three License for the keeping of 11 to 25 dogs or for the keeping of greater
than 25 dogs. A kennel in excess of 25 dogs shall not be permitted unless the Animal Control
Officer determines that such kennel in excess of 25 dogs shall board dogs primarily within a
building and such building shall provide for not less than one hundred (100) square feet of gross
floor area per dog. The new kennel licensing requirements shall become effective on.
[Amended 5-1-2018 ATM, Art. 28]

Application and issuance of license and fees. A kennel license shall be issued annually by the Town
Clerk upon written application by an owner or keeper of dogs and after inspection and
determination by the Animal Control Officer, or other agent as designated by the Town Manager,
that the conditions set forth in Subsection D are met.

An application fee of $100 shall be required for the initial application and for any applications to
make changes to an existing kennel license.

https://ecode360.com/print/14688430#14688430
https://ecode360.com/print/14688431#14688431
https://ecode360.com/print/14688432#14688432
https://ecode360.com/print/14688434#14688434
https://ecode360.com/print/14688435#14688435
https://ecode360.com/print/14688436#14688436
https://ecode360.com/print/34143896#34143896
https://ecode360.com/print/16099681#16099681
https://ecode360.com/print/16099682#16099682
https://ecode360.com/print/16099688#16099688


(2) 

C. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

D. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

E. 

F. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

Exception: All existing kennels licensed before January 1, 2012, shall be exempt from the
requirement of a new application and be subject only to the requirement of the annual
inspection and renewal fee.

Conditions that must be met for the issuance of a kennel license. The Animal Control Officer, or
other agent as designated by the Town Manager, shall determine that:

The proposed licensed premises contains sufficient and suitable space for the keeping of the
specific breed(s) and number(s) of dogs, including both indoor and outdoor areas.

The proposed licensed premises for a Grade One License, a Grade Two License, and a Grade
Three License shall provide suitable distances from nearby residential dwellings. Suitable
distances from nearby residential dwellings shall be determined by the Animal Control Officer,
or other agent as designated by the Town Manager, upon inspection of the proposed licensed
premises.

The proposed licensed premises contain a suitable shelter for the dogs, which for a Grade
Three License includes adequate running water and an impervious floor suitable for sanitary
maintenance.

Kennel license conditions. All kennel licenses shall be issued annually and be subject to the
following conditions:

The licensee shall maintain a certificate of health signed by a licensed veterinarian for each
dog in the kennel. The certificate of health shall be updated at least annually upon review of
the kennel license and the payment of the annual kennel license fee.

The licensee shall maintain a certificate signed by a licensed veterinarian that each dog in the
kennel six months of age or older has a current rabies vaccination.

The licensee shall comply with the Town of Northbridge Leash Bylaw, § 8-102.

The licensed premises shall be subject to unannounced, annual inspections by the Animal
Control Officer, or other agent as designated by the Town Manager, regarding compliance with
the conditions of the kennel license.

Penalties and enforcement. The operation of a kennel without a license shall be a violation of this
bylaw. Any violation of the conditions of a kennel license shall be grounds for suspension,
revocation, or nonrenewal of the kennel license. The provisions of this article shall be enforced by
the Animal Control Officer, or other agent as designated by the Town Manager. The penalties for
violating the kennel licensing provision set forth herein shall be $50 for the first offense and $75 for
each subsequent offense, each day of the violation constituting a separate offense.

Appeal and waiver.

Should a kennel license be denied because of the applicant's inability to meet the
requirements of sufficient and suitable space, suitable distance from nearby residential
dwellings, and suitable shelter for the dogs, as determined upon inspection by the Animal
Control Officer, or other agent as designated by the Town Manager, the applicant may appeal
the Town Clerk's denial to the Board of Selectmen, or their designee, within 30 days of
receiving the denial.

The Board of Selectmen, or their designee, shall hold a hearing on said appeal within 45 days
of receipt of the written notice of appeal.

Notice of the hearing shall be given by postage-prepaid first-class mail to the abutters of the
proposed licensed premises, both to the property owner and any tenants, as appearing in the
Board of Assessors' most recent list, and also shall be published in a newspaper of general
circulation in the Town, at least 14 days prior to the date of the Board of Selectmen's, or their
designee's, hearing. The applicant shall pay the expenses of giving said notice.

https://ecode360.com/print/16099683#16099683
https://ecode360.com/print/16099684#16099684
https://ecode360.com/print/16099685#16099685
https://ecode360.com/print/16099686#16099686
https://ecode360.com/print/16099687#16099687
https://ecode360.com/print/16099688#16099688
https://ecode360.com/print/16099689#16099689
https://ecode360.com/print/16099690#16099690
https://ecode360.com/print/16099691#16099691
https://ecode360.com/print/16099692#16099692
https://ecode360.com/print/16099693#16099693
https://ecode360.com/print/16099694#16099694
https://ecode360.com/print/16099695#16099695
https://ecode360.com/print/16099696#16099696
https://ecode360.com/print/16099697#16099697


(4) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

E. 

[1]

[1]

After hearing, the Board of Selectmen, or their designee, may waive strict compliance with the
provisions set forth in Subsection D and order the Town Clerk to issue the license if:

The Animal Control Officer, or other agent as designated by the Town Manager,
recommends a waiver.

The Board of Selectmen, or their designee, determines that there is sufficient area for the
keeping of the dogs and that the health and the safety of the public is protected.

In granting a waiver under this section, the Board of Selectmen, or their designee, may
impose conditions on the waiver such that the health and the safety of the public is
protected.

§ 8-113. Waste removal.

[Added 10-25-2011 ATM, Art. 7[1]]

Duty to dispose. It shall be the duty of each person who owns, possesses or controls a dog to
remove and dispose of any feces left by his/her dog on any sidewalk, street, park or other public
area.

Duty to possess means of removal. No person who owns, possesses or controls such dog shall
appear with such dog on any sidewalk, street, park or other public area without the means of
removal of any feces left by such dog.

Method of removal and disposal. For the purpose of this regulation, the means of removal shall be
any tool, implement or other device carried for the purpose of picking up and containing such feces
unexposed to said person or the public. Disposal shall be accomplished by transporting such feces
to a place suitable and regularly reserved for the disposal of human feces, specifically reserved for
the disposal of canine feces or as otherwise designated as appropriate by the Board of Health.

Fines or violation. Violation of this regulation shall be punished by a fine of $50 for each
occurrence.

Exemption. This regulation shall not apply to a dog accompanying a handicapped person who, by
reason of his/her handicap, is physically unable to comply with the requirements of this regulation.

Editor's Note: This Article also redesignated former § 8-113, Severability, as § 8-115.

§ 8-114. Banned or removed dogs.

[Added 10-25-2011 ATM, Art. 7]
Dogs "banned" or "removed" from another town or municipality may not be relocated to or be permitted
to be kept within the Town of Northbridge.

§ 8-115. Severability.

In the event that any provision or section of this section is deemed invalid and unenforceable, all other
provisions shall remain in force and in effect.[1]

Editor's Note: Former § 8-114, Penalties, which immediately followed this section, was repealed 10-25-
2011 ATM, Art. 7.

https://ecode360.com/print/16099698#16099698
https://ecode360.com/print/16099699#16099699
https://ecode360.com/print/16099700#16099700
https://ecode360.com/print/16099701#16099701
https://ecode360.com/print/16099703#16099703
https://ecode360.com/print/16099704#16099704
https://ecode360.com/print/16099705#16099705
https://ecode360.com/print/16099706#16099706
https://ecode360.com/print/16099707#16099707
https://ecode360.com/print/16099688#16099688


mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
Pending the final Order/Decision the owner of the dog can appeal the decision of the Board of Selectmen. Below is the process for the owner.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text





C.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxx



mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text





mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx







D.



1

Melissa Ciaramitaro

From: Tony Genga
Sent: Tuesday, March 28, 2023 8:06 PM
To: Melissa Ciaramitaro; Sharon Susienka
Subject: Banner

Good evening, I would like to request the hanging of a banner across Church st from May 7th ‐ May 14th to advertise the 
NFD Spaghetti supper which is being held on May 13th. Please let me know if you need any additional information. 
Thanks, Tony 
 
Get Outlook for Android 

E.



mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
Northbridge Firefighters L3338

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
xxxxxxxxxxxxx





mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
Northbridge Firefighters L3338

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
193 Main Street

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
Whitinsville, MA 01588

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
X

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
X

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
508-234-8448

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Line

mciaramitaro
Line



1

Melissa Ciaramitaro

From: Peter Bedigian <pbedigian@omnicontroltech.com>
Sent: Sunday, March 26, 2023 9:17 AM
To: Melissa Ciaramitaro
Cc: Joanne (jkhoury@charter.net)
Subject: Banner Request

Hi Melissa, 

 The following is the request for our church annual picnic banner for 2023: 

 Annual Picnic Banner in August with event being held on August 20. 

We would like the banner up during the first part of August up to the event date – whatever availability would be 
possible. 

Thanks, 

Best regards, 
 
 
Peter J. Bedigian  
President/CEO 
Omni Control Technology, Inc.  
1 Main St 
PO Box 444  
Whitinsville, MA 01588  
Office: (508) 234‐9121 Ext. 102 
Cell: (508) 269‐1354 
Fax: (508) 234‐9512 
www.omnicontroltech.com 

 
 

F.

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text
Sunday, August 6, 2023 - Sunday, August 20, 2023 - Available

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text

mciaramitaro
Typewritten Text



G.1.



G.2.



Town Manager’s Report for the Period of  

March 27, 2023 – April 7, 2023 

1. Key Meetings Attended: 

 Monday, March 27, 2023 – Participated in the weekly Fire Station Design Team virtual meeting. 

 Monday, March 27, 2023 – Participated in an MMA Webinar on Legislative Priorities. 

 Monday, March 27, 2023 – Attended the Board of Selectmen Meeting. 

 Thursday, March 30, 2023 – Attended a regional Health Insurance Virtual Meeting at HPI 
headquarters in Westborough. 

 Monday, April 3, 2023 – Participated in the weekly Fire Station Design Team virtual meeting. 

 Wednesday, April 5, 2023 – Conference Call with Attorney Rick Holland, KP Law, and Assessor 
Bob Fitzgerald regarding the McQuades Lane Solar PILOT. 

 Thursday, April 6, 2023 – Attended the weekly Fire Station Project site visit and construction 
meeting. 

 Miscellaneous Calls/Visits with Residents, Staff, and Board Members. 

2. Fire Station Project:  Weekly design team meetings continue to occur every Monday morning and 
weekly construction meetings every Thursday afternoon with the project team and the General 
Contractor, M. O’Connor.  The steel frame is installed in the main building and light gauge metal 
framing for the interior walls of the administration area is underway.  MEP above ceiling and in wall 
rough in continues in the apparatus bay and administration area.  AVB application for the outbuilding 
and main building continues.  CMU install for the hose tower continues.   Next steps include roofing 
the main building and concrete work for the column infills and the training mezzanine.  The BPCC 
will meet next week on 4/11/2023 to review Payment Requisition #11 for the GC as well as invoices 
for the OPM, Architect and Testing Services.   

3. Northbridge Elementary School Reuse Study:  The architect team from Abacus and the 
BPCC/Town Manager held a public forum presentation on January 18, 2023, to get feedback from 
residents on proposed uses and layouts.  An existing conditions survey is complete as well as an 
Environmental Phase 1 and Phase 2.  The BPCC will meet next week on 4/11/2023 to discuss 
finalizing the draft report to post on the Town’s website ahead of the Town Meeting.  The Selectmen 
have placed an article on the Annual Town Meeting Warrant to get voter authorization to dispose of 
the property. 

4. Linwood Basketball Courts Project:  The Town only received one bid (Quirk Construction) and 
unfortunately it came in over budget.  Thus, the plan is to go to the Spring Town Meeting and seek 
additional funds such that the contractor can begin construction in June and finish at the end of 
August.   

5. Cable Advisory Committee:  The Committee Chair, Harry Berkowitz, attended the Selectmen 
Meeting last week to provide an update.  The current Charter/Spectrum Franchise Agreement expires 
at the end of this May 2023.  The Cable Advisory Committee held a public hearing on January 24, 
2023 at Town Hall to discuss the Franchise Agreement renewal with the public.  The hearing was 
continued to a later date.  The Cable Committee has metwith Bill Hewig, Attorney from KP Law, and 
John Maher from Charter to discuss the Town’s points of interests.  Mr. Hewig will continue to 
negotiate with Mr. Maher on the suggested terms and the Committee is scheduled to meet again in 
April.   

6. FY2024 Budget and Capital Plan Development: The Warrant has been finalized in compliance 
with the Bylaw requirement.  Staff has been preparing the FinCom Booklet for Town Meeting,  The 
Board of Selectmen will vote their positions on all the articles at their meeting on April 24th.   The 
Spring Annual Town Meeting is scheduled for May 2, 2023 at 7 pm at the Middle School 
Auditorium. 




